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LIFESTORY GROUP LiMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

The directors present the strategic repor for the year ended 30 June 2021,

The business model
The principal activity of the company and the group is the development and sale of retirement agcommodation.

Review of the group's business

In the year ended 30 Junea 2021, group turnover was £101.2m (2020: £89.5m), representing 127 home sales (2020
123) and fand sales of £19.6m (2020: £11.6m). In 2021, sales continued to be impacted negatively by covid, restricting
visits and delaying the conveyancing process. The stamp duty incentive was a welcome boost and helped underpin
and accelerate some completions, but not enough to make a significant impact an the year's results. The group’s
aperating loss for the year from continuing operations was £49.7m (2020: £56.0m). An impairment review of sites
was undertaken and resulled in an impairment charge of £20.1m (2020: £32.6m). This impairment arose as a result
of a strategic decision on a historic where a change of use was agreed on a premium site, as well as historic build
rectification costs and reductions in forecast sales prices.

The results reflect the second yesr since the operational merger with Anthoiogy Group and ¢cempletes the transition
period in the strategic plan. During this period, the business model has been re-set. Significant time and resources
have been employed lo bring our homes to the exacting standards we set, specifically dealing with legacy supply
issues. We are proud of the product that bears the ‘Lifestory’ name and our customers have seen first-hand the
dedication of the team to ensure their homes are at the highest standard. This final stage of remediation work has
had a negalive bearing on the financial resuits for the group during this period, but it has been our highest priority
expenditure and any warks of this nature are fully accounted for in the year.

Customer service and choice remains at the heart of our operations. It is particularly pleasing to see the increased
inlerest to the expanded rental proposition that is now affered, which provides our new customers real choice, with
the option to purchase, 1o rent, or to rent before purchase. This reflects the work we have done to constantly challenge
the business to provida the very best experience through the sales joumey and then the post sales community, which
is carefully supported by the Lifestory hosls. The rental portfolio has been well received by the market and has now
grown to 89 homes at the year-end (2020: 29).

The rationalisation of the portfolio has also continued, with the sale of {and bank sites that did not meet the new retumn
aspirations set for investment. Those sales included iand at Weybridge, Tunbridge Wells, Windlesham and Sutton
Coldfield. The completed development at Sevenoaks was sold to a specialist care provider in December 2020 and
since the balance sheet date, the 126-home develcpment in Portishead achieved planning for a change of use and
the sale completed on 13 September 2021 to a housing association. Looking ahead, the site at Guildford is in contract
for sale and Sidmouth is under offer. This will then condude the land bank changes identified.

The next phase of the strategy is to continue building for the future, with a very focussed land purchase strategy that
is well under way. In the year we had sites exchanged at Maidenhead and Solihuil. Since the year end, the purchase
of sites at Lichfield and Lymington were completed. Together these represent a new pipeline of developments that
saed the beginning of the future investment for growth. The group is actively looking for new land across the country,
with a clear remit oh scale, location and retumns to ensure we deliver great homes for our future customers, whilst
establishing a highly accrelive business mode! that will drive future sustainable profit.

Trading since the lockdown rastrictions were iifted in the early summer has picked up significantly, with a fantastic
positive reaction to the numerous events and marketing that have showcased the Lifestory developments. The visitor
rates since the balance sheet date are now consistently above the pre-pandemic level and this has led to reservations

that support our target for the new financial year.

On 29 January 2021 OCM Luxembourg Pegasus Haldings S.A.R.L., capitalised £294,857,000 in loans to new share
capital, this showed the parent company's commitment to supporting the group. As part of the ordinary treasury
operations of business there were loan facilities entered into during the year with sister group, Anthology Group
Limited for £42,000,000, and Daiwa Capital Markets Europe Limited for £9.475.000.

Hackwood Homes Limited, a subsidiary company of Lifestory Group by way of an cption to control it, appointed
administrators on 4 March 2021. The company is working with the administrators to understand the next steps for this
business. The administration has had an insignificant impact to the group.




LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
STRATEGIC REFORT {CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Key performance indicators

Year ended 30 Year ended 30

June 2021 June 2020

Homes sold 127 123
Operating loss fram continuing activities (£49.7m) {£56.0m)
Sites acquired during the year - 3
At 30 June 2021 At 30 June 2020

Shareholders’ funds/deficit) £134.2m {£69.6m)
Employees (average) 160 213
Completed sites 25 24
Sitea under construction 6 7
Undeveloped sites ] 15
Total sites 40 46
Landbank homes completed 521 512
Landbank homes under construction 241 258
Landbank homes in the pipeline 279 407
Total landbank homes 1,041 1,177
GDV pipeline at year end £695m £812m

Homes sold, sites acquired, and the operating loss are discussed in the review of the group's business. Shareholders'
funds have increased significantly during the year with the capitalisation of £294,857,000 from the parent company
loan, which offset the Ioss for the year. In the year total sites and undeveloped sites have decreased due to the sale
of sites and selling out sites. Completed sites increased by one and sites under construction decreased by one as
sites completed during the year, offset by selling out sites, and some undeveloped sites beginning construction.

The number of homes in the pipeiine, total landbank homes, and GDV pipeline have all reduced as stock has sold
through and no new sites were purchased in the year. Completed homes have increased slightly, in line with
completed sites. Landbank homes under construction has increased as work has commenced on previously
undeveloped sites. Since the balance sheet date, the pipeline has been building with new sile acquisitions, as
discussed in the review of the group’s business, and this will continue to be the strategy.

Employee numbers have decraased during the year due to the derecognition of Hackwood Homes Limited and a
reduction in recruitment during Govemment lockdowns, this is somewhat offset by staff being transferred into the
group from sister company. Anthalogy Group Limited. The derecognition of Hackwood Homes has resulled in a
decrease of 36 employees compared fo the priar year. The directors are dedicated to developing our employees and
supporting them to undertake a variety of training and development activities and measure the impact of these on the

individual's and company's performance.

Funding and geing concern

On 4 July 2019, the group completed a £525m, S-year loan facility with a syndicate of lenders including Sculptor
Petrel Investment 5.a.r.l, AIG and Lloyds Bank. This facility has been operating throughout the financial year and the
group has remained covenant compliant throughout the reporting period and to the reporting date and to the date at

which this repont s signed.

The business has experienced a long period of expansion, which has been fully supported by its parent company,
Oaktree European Principal Fund lll, This has been further underwritten by the £284.8m conversion of is
intercompany loan inte equity on 29 January 2021, providing a significant boost to the net asset value of the business

from this point.




LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Funding and going concern {continued)
The business constantly manitors its funding pesition against the forward-looking plan to ensure there is sufficient
headroom and this is done with the full visibility and input by the Fund.

On & March 2021, the business entered into a £35m loan agreement with its sister company, Anthology Group Limited
and on 25 June 2021 this facility was increased to £42m, of which £17m had been drawn at the year end. This loan
is unsecured and repayable on 9 March 2024. On 7 December 2021 the facility was increased to £62.0m, with a
further E41m drawn in the period lo 31 January 2022,

On 23 June 2021, the group entered into a £3.48m loan facility agreement with Daiwa Capital Markets Europe Limited.
Itis a 15-month facility, is secured against certain land within the group.

At the date of this report, when sensitising the cash flow forecast for the reasonably possible worst-case scendrio, a
further £27m of funds is expected 10 be required in the foreseeable future to support the continued growth of the
business and ¢ also ensure liquidity and covenants are being met.

Within the Lifestory Group there are cerain expected funding events cver the next 12 months that had not yet been
concluded at the date of signing this report, further informalion on these can be found in the going cancern section of
the directors’ report,

These matters are all in the normal course of trading for the group and reflect the ongoing treasury activities at the
current point in time. The business is very experienced in closing these transactions and considers all of these items
to be low risk. As a resuit, the directors believe that the going concem basis of preparation s appropriate in these
financial statements. However, given these have nol yet concluded al the date of approval of these financial
staternents, they, in combination, creale a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt an the group and
company's ability to continue as a going concern which in turn may result in the group and company being unable to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

Events after the reporting date
On 13 September 2021 the 126-home development in Poriishead achieved planning for a change of use and was
sold to a housing association for £27,800,000.

On 16 September 2021 41 rented properties were tfransfarred for a value of £15,000,000 1o a newly formed business
outside of the Lifestory group but with a cemmon ultimate parent company. At the same time a framework agreement
was completed to allow all future rented homes to be transfered to this same entity, subject to certain criteria being
met. The letting agency business operated by Lifestory will continue to provide letting services for the purchaser.

On 14 October 2021 the group completed the acquisition on a site in Lymington for £4,800,000.

On 15 October 2021 the group completed a development loan for three sites at Bath, Woobum Green, and Cranleigh,
with Cheyne Capital Limited with a facility totalling £40,000,000 with a repayment date of April 2024.

On 29 November 2021 the group completed the acquisition on a sfte in Lichfield for £2,800,000.

On 7 December 2021, the company increased the facifity with sister company. Anthology Group Limited to
£62,000,000.

On 8 February 2022 the Midas group enlered administration. Midas was a main contractor for one of our completed
sites hawever only rectification work remained outstanding, and management has assessed that the impact to the
group is insignificant, and the works will be completed by Lifestary on a construction management basis.




LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Principal risks and uncortaintics
Risk: Ptanning Qefays { failure to get consent

Mitigation
» Conditional contracts or fall-back positions inckiding the sale of land
*  As business matures, individual site delays have less impact on oversll performance

« No stan on site until KPt farget enquirias ! resarvations hit
Rlsk: Build cost inflation / surety of supply

Mitigation
¢ Altemative forms of construction being reviewed
*  Mix of procurement methods utilised such as two-stage tendering and construction management
+ Explore new connections with mid-sized construction compardes for ongoing programme of work
L]

Use of fixed price contracts whene appropriate
Risk: Market slowdown
Mitigation
«  Selling off-plan exlends sales period and gives visibility of pipeline

Alternative structures: rent to buy, assured tenangy rental

L]
«  Work with Part Exchange providers
« Site appraisals and forecast margins allow for reductions in revenues without causing losses to be mada

Risk: Retention of high performing talent

Mitigation
s Appropriate reward structures where employees can benefit from vaiue created

Risk: Covid 19
Mitigation
e Cument plans are in piace to deal with the government guidelines on Covid 19. Plans will evolve accarding
to changing requirements and conditions

5172 statemant
5172 statement is presented on pages 5- 7.

and authorised for issue by the board and signed on its behalf by:

- -

Mr Mark Dickinson
Director

17 March 2022




LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
$172 STATEMENT

Directors are required to explain how they consider the interests of key stakeholders and the broader matters set out
in section 172(1) {A) to (F) of the Companies Act 2006 ('S172’) when performing their duty to promote the success of
the company and the group under $172. This includes considering the interest of other stakeholders which will have
an impact on the long-term success of the company and the group.

The S172 statement explains who the company’s and the group’s stakehalder groups are, their material issues and
how the directors of Lifestory Group engage with them, and the effect of that regards, including on the principal
decisions taken by the company and the group during the financial year. The S172 statement focuses on matters of
strategic imporiance to Lifestory Group, and the level of information disclosed is consistent with the size and the
complexity of the business.

When making decisions, sach director ensures that hefshe acts in the way he/she considers, in goaod faith, would
most likely promote the company's and the group’s success for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in doing
s0 have regard (among other matiers) to:

$172(1} (A) The likely consequences of any decision in the long term:

The directors and senior management are supported by an information system that provides timely alerts to matiers
impacting the business in the short and longer term. This covers all aspects of the operations from health and safety
on site, procurement, delivery and sales. The information is used to make the right decisions to ensure the best
outcomes in all of these areas and generally, the operations of the group and company.

On an annual basis a 5-year ptan is approved by the board and the performance against this plan is monitored closely,
with rolling profit and cash flow projections produced monthly. This identifies, from a financial and cash managemaent
perspective, where actions can be taken to optimise 1he outcomes.

There is a depth of knowledge within the business that ensures the likely impact of external factors is minimised, but
this Is alsc supporied with active engagement across the business with key stakeholders including the planning
authorities, industry bodies, financing stakeholders, investors, the supply chain and our customers.

The directors use all of this information to avoid negative impact of decisions on its stakeholders and to continually
build its reputation as a market leader in customer service, design and quality.

$172(1) (B) The interests of Lifestory Group's employees:

Lifestory Group's employees are core to the business and fundamental to its long-term success. Significant efforts
are rade to ensure that Lifestory Group remains a responsible employer from pay and benefits to health, safety and
workplace environment. The business actively pursues a practice of gender equality and diversity that reflects society.

The group invests in its employees through a development programme including leadership training, apprenticeships,
and specific skills training. The employees are actively encouraged to discuss development needs; and these are
factored into the annual review process, to ensure they are captured and actioned.

The group is also proud to have run its graduate recruitment programme for many years and strongly believes in
providing the future generations the opportunity to build their careers in the business and sat them up to succeed. At
the date of the signing of this report 7% of the workforce is on a graduate or apprenticeship programme, the goal is
for this figure to reach 10%. :

Regular communication is essential and is a key part of the Lifestory approach. A weekly group-wide newsietter is
produced, and the Chief Executive presents group updates 1o all employees every two months. There is also an
arnual employee survey which provides the team a chance to give honest feedback and is used to inform direction
for the future. In the latest survey, it was very pleasing to see that over 90% would recommend Lifestory as a great
place to work.




LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
5172 STATEMENT {(CONTINUED}

Underlying the day-to-day team management is a very clear set of policies on health and safety, anti-bribery, anti-
money laundering and modem slavery. The processes are clearly defined to support these policies and reqular
training is performed across the business.

§172(1) (C) The need to foster Lifestory Group's business relationships with suppliers, customers and othars
and §172(1) (D) The impact of Lifestory Group’s oparations cn the community and the environment:

Strong and mutually beneficial relationships with suppliers, customers and government are fundamental pillars for
Lifestory Group's operational success. The group seeks the promation and application of certain general principles in
such relationships. The ability to promete these principles effectively is an important factor in the decision to enter
into or remain in such refationships. In particular:

Customers
* An ethos of listening to our customers' needs are at the heart of the trust'that is built with our customers.

Encouraging engagement with the community which they are entering before a purchase is completed.
Offering clear guidance on the purchass, so our customers are fully supported in their decision making.
Supporting the conveyancing, sales progression and move to make the process as easy as possible.
Offer a simple choice between purchase or rental.

Partner and suppliers
+« Tendering to ensure equal opportunities for suppliers and best commercial outcome for the business.

« Health and safety control programs to improve safety across the value chain.

Government and regulators
+ Maintaining regular dielegue with government and engaging in policy debates that are of concern to Lifestory
Group and the communities in which it operates.
« Maintaining an activa role in industry groups that present industry views to government.

Society and environment

+ Continuous monitoring of environmental management through robust design principles that ensure the
homes are built to sustainable standards. ’

«  Full compliance with the current regulations.

+ Selecting contractors that have a strong track record of being considerate to the neighbourhocd during
construction.

« Engaging with our customers lo explain the environmental features of their homes, so that they can minimise
the impact on the envicanment.

« Engaging with local communities through social medial, community workshops and training.

* Supporting local community social and charitable programmes as part of our marketing approach ard local
engagement.

$172(1) (E) The desirability of Lifestory Group maintaining a reputation for high standards of business

conduct:
The directors set the highest standards of governance to ensure the business operates in a responsible manner and

ensures its reputation and trust of its stakeholders is not questioned.

Regular communication amangst the boand and employees, togethar with effective, formally recorded board meetings,
ensure such standards are maintained. Where appropriate, independent legal advice is obtained to suppon the
decision-making process. The directors also receive training cn an annual basis to refresh their knowledge on latest

requirements.




LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
$172 STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

$172{1} (F) The need to act fairly between members of the company and the group:

The directars are responsible for choosing the course of actions which enables Lifestory Group to achieve its lang-
term strategy, taking into consideralion the impact on stakeholders. In doing so, the diractors act fairly between the
company's and the group’s members. This approach is also further enhanced with a majority of the directors being
representatives of the parent undertaking.

For further details on key decisions made in the year please ses the review of the graup’s business on page 1.




LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

The directors present their annual report and audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021.

Disclosure of the future developments of the group and events after the reporting date is given in the Strategic report.
Information an the group's considerations towards key stakeholders can be found in the 5172 statements. Information
on the group's financial risk management objectives is provided in note 26 to these financial statements.

Directors
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signature of the financial statements were as

follows:

Mr Mark Dickinsan

Ms Alison Endemano

Mr Stefano Mazzoli

Mr David Simpson

Mr James Van Steenkiste

Results and dividends
The results for the year are set out on page 16.

No ordinary dividends were paid (2020: £nil). The directors do not recommend payment of a further dividend.

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions
The company provided qualifying thind-party indemaity provisions to certain directors during the financial year and at

the date of this report.

Greenhouse gas emission reporting
This section has been prepared in accordance with our regulalory obligation to report greenhouse gas (GHG)
emissions pursuant to the large and medium-size companies and groups {accounts and reports) regulations 2008 as

amended.

During the reporting period 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021, our annual quantity of emissions in tannes of carbon dioxide
resulting frorn the purchase of fuel, electricity, heat, steam, or cooling consumed in the operation of our vehicles and
offices was 330,969 kWh (2020: 655,442 kWh) being 102.27 tCO2e (2020: 202.57 tCO2e), of this, Scope 1 emissions
represented 286,323 kwh and 88.47 tCO2e. As a measure of efficiency, the company intensity ratio is the number of
employees over carbon dioxide consumed which is a ratio of 0.64 tC0OZ2e (2020: 0.85 1C0O2e) per employee. Due to
a reorganisation which saw staff transferred from sister company Anthology Group Limited it is more appropriate to
use a combined figure for the Lifestory and Anthology groups, which gives a 0.7 tCO2e (2020: 1.0 1CO2e) per
employes, reflecting an improvement in the group trave! policy as well as a reduced foolprint due o less office use
during the Covid-19 lockdown periods.

The company has made assumptions and estimations in calculating the emissions output. This included using a 2020
assessment produced to comply with the Energy Saving Opportunity Scheme (ESO0S) Regulation 2014, The
methodology used to determine the emissions output was a blend of benchmarking, extrapolating figures and
obtaining meterage readings to calculate a reasonable estimate of the company's energy profile. These calculations
are prepared by an energy consultancy company and were used as a basis for the current financial year reparting.

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others
The group's practices for the engagement with suppliers, customers and others is given within the Section 172

statement.




LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Employee Involvement

The company promotes equal opporiunities and opportunities by applying procedures and practices as set out in our
equal opportunities policy covering disabled people. The company will not discriminate in opportunities for recruitment,
training, and promotion. The company seeks to continually develop and improve its workforce and is dedicated o
develtoping its employees and supporting them to undertake a variety of training and development activities and
measures the impact of these on the individual's and company's performance.

Going concern

In assessing the going concern position of the group and company, the directors have conducted a rigorous
assessment of the group’s ability to operate for the foreseeable future. This assessment included an in-depth review
of the group ¢cash flow forecasts taking into consideration the latest operating environment. A base case scenario was
prepared against which the directors expect to deliver, over which & number of downside sensitivities were overlaid
to forecast the impact of reasonably possible outcomes. In order to address the reasonably worst-case scenario and
fo support continued growth of the business, the directors have determined that a further £27m of funding is required

in the foreseeable future.

In consideration of the mitigations available to the Group, the Directors acknowledge that the group has a £62m loan
facility with its sister company, Anthology Group Limited. The loan term is 3 years and ends in March 2024, On 30
June 2021 the loan was £17m, and up to 28 February 2022 a further £44m had been drawn, bringing the 1oan balance
to £61m. At the date of this report there have been no further drawdowns. The directors, who are common to both
groups, with two of Anthology Group's directors also being Lifestory Group directors, will manage the fiow of funds
from Antholagy Group Limited to Lifestory Group Limited. This will provide up to £1m of additional funding for Lifestory
Group Limited under the inter-group facility. The directors have assessed the ability of Anthology Group Limited,
through sensitised cash flow forecasts, to provide the required level of cash funding as and when required by Lifestory
Group Limited. The directors were satisfied that sufficient funding would be available as required.

Further funding is expected within Lifestory Group fram certain funding events over the next 12 months that have not
yet been concluded at the date of signing this report. Those events are:

e the completion of a £50.0m development loan for three new sites in Lifestory Group Limited that supports the
delivery of these sites over the next 18 months. At the date of this report, terms have been agreed with the
lender for this facility and will be subject to lender diligence and credit committee approval. This Is expected
lo complete within 1 month of the date of this report

» The sale of renial properties totalling £30.5m to a UK entity which is under common contrel within the Fund
managed by Oaktree European Principal Fund i}, This is expected to complete within 1 month of the date of
this report.

*» A £24.0m refinance of a completed development, with a stack loan replacing devetoper finance. Loan terms
from lenders have been received and the facility is expected to be in place within 2 months of the date of this
repori.

* Adevelopment loan to be putin place which will release £10.5m of funding. The development loan is for five
new sites in Lifestory Group Limited that supports the delivery of these sites over the next 18 months. At the
date of this report, terms are being discussed with lenders.

These matters are all in the normal course of trading for the group and reflect the ongoing treasury activities at the
current point in time. The business is very experienced in closing these transactions and considers all of these items
to be low risk. As a result, the directors believe that the going concern basis of preparation is appropriate in these
financial statements. However, given these have not yet concluded at the date of approval of these financial
statements, they, in combination, create a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the group and
company’s ability to continue as a going concern which in turn may result in the group and company being unable to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the nermal course of business.

Auditor
Deloitte LLP has expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditor and appropriate arrangements have been
put in place for them to be deemed re-appointed as auditor in the absence of an annual general meeting.




LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Statement of disclosure to auditor
So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the auditar of the company is unaware. Additionally, the directors individually have taken ail tha
necessary steps that they ought to have taken as directars in order fo make themsetves aware of all relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditar of the company is aware of that information. This confirnation is given
and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act 2006.

ed and authorised for issue by the board and signed cn its behalf by:

Mr Mark Dickinson
Director

17 March 2022

10



LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
diractors have elected to prepare the group financial statements in accordance with intemational accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008, and the parent company financial
stalements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdam Accounting
Standards and applicable law), including FRS 101 "Reducad Disclosure Framework”. Under company law the
directors must not approve the {inancial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true angd fair view of the
state of affairs of the group and the company and of the profit or loss of the group and company for that pariod.

In preparing the parent company financial stalements, the directors are required to:

s select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+» make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and axplained in the financial statements; and

¢ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
carmpany will continue ir husiness.

In preparing the group financial stalements, Intemational Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors:

s properly select and apply accounting policies;

» present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, refiable, comparable
and understandable informalion;

= provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient ta
enable users te understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's
financiai position and financial performance; and

+ make an assessment of the company's ability to continue as a going concem.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the firancial position of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial staterents comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial informatien included on
the company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom govermning the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions

11



LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED

Opinion
In our opinion:

» the financial statements of Lifestory Group Limited (the ‘parent company') and Its subsidiaries (the ‘group’)

give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company's affairs as at 30 June 2021
“and of the group's loss for the year then ended;

» the group fingncial statements have been properly prepared in accardance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006;

« the parent cornpany financial statements have been properly preparad in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporling Standard 101 "Reduced Disclosure
Framework"; and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act

2006,

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

the consalidated statement of comprehensive income;

the consolidaled and parent company stalements of financial position;
the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity:
the consolidated statement of cash flaws; and

the retated notes 1 to 33.

The financial reporting framewaork that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements is
applicable taw and international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of tha parent company financial statements
is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 "Reduced
Disclosure Framework" (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion
We conducted aur audit in accerdance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (LK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.

Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements sectien of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, induding the Financial Reporting Council's (the ‘FRC's")
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidance we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to noie 1 in the financial statements, which indicates that there are certain expected funding events
required to take place in the next 12 months that had not yet been concluded at the date of signing this report. As
stated in note 1, these events or conditions, along with the ather matters as set forth in note 1, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the group’s and company’s ability to continue as a going concern,

QOur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Our responsibililies and the responsibilities of the directers with respect to going concem are described in the relevant
sactions of this reporl.
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LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TC THE MEMBERS OF LIFESTCRY GROUP LIMITED

Other information
YThe other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and

our auditor's report therean. The directors are responsible for the other informatior within the annual report. Qur
apinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the exient ctherwise explicitly
slated in our report, wa do not express any form of assurance canclysion thereon.

Our respansibility is lo read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materaily
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
delermine whether this gives rise to a there is a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. i,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstalement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the direclors' respensibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company's
ahility to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
congem basis of accounting unless the directors aither intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease
operations, or hava no realislic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, and to issue an auditor's repart that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance; but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always delect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can atise from fraud of emor
and are considered maleriai If, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions af users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statemenis is localed on the FRC's wabsite at:
www frc.org.uk/auditorsrespensibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of datecting irregularities, including fraud

trreguiarities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and reguiations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregulanities, including
fraud. The extent to which aur procedures are capable of detecting imegularities, including fraud is detailed below.

We considered the nature of the group's industry and its contral environment, and reviewed the group's
documentation of their palicies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We also
enguired of management about their own identification and assessment of the risks of imegularities.

We cbtained an understanding of the lega! and reguiatory framawork that the group operales in, and identified the
key laws and regulations that
« had a direct effect an the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
These included UK Companies Act, pensicns legislation and tax legislation; and
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LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED

+ do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the:
group's ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty. These included construction and environmental

ragulations.

We discussed among the audit engagement team regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the
arganisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements.

As a result of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following area, and our specific
procedures performed fo address it are described below:

» The camying value of inventories as a result of impairment due to estimation applied in forecast costs to
complete and expected selling prices. We agreed construction costs to compiete to third party cost forecasts;
challenged the other cosis to complete based on past performance and other exiemal evidence; and
challenged forecast sefling prices for developments in light of historical prices achieved, reservations agreed
and recent apen marke! selling prices achieved in the locale of the development.

In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to raspond to the risk
of management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controis, we tested the
appropriateness of journal entries and other adjusiments; assessed whether the judgements made in making
accounting estimates are indicative of 3 potential bias, and evaluated the business rationale of any significant
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business,

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:

* reviewing financial statement disclosures by lesting to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
provisians of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

« performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks
of malerial misstatement due to fraud;

« enquiring of management and in-house legal counsel conceming actual and potential liligation and claims,
and instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; and .

* reading minules of meefings of those charged with governance,

Report on other legal and requlatory reguirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the informalion given in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consisient with the financial statements; and

+ the strategic report and the directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements,

in the fight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their enviranment
oblained in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the

directors’ report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED

Matters an which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:

« agequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

« the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

= certain disclosures of direciors' remuneration specified -ty law are not made; or

= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have ncthing to report in respect of these matters.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinians we have formed.

e

Jamas Wright FCA {Senior statutory auditor}
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom

17 March 2022
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LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Notes
. 2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Continuing operations
Revenus 4 101,216 89,466
Cost of sales (103,957) (90,876)
Impairment of inventories 6 (20,074) {32,555)
Gross loss . (22,815) {33,965)
Administrative expenses {30,758) {22,952)
Other operating income 5 3,921 838
Operating loss [ {49,652) (65,979)
Finance costs 11 {39,849) (47,522)
Loss hefore taxation (89,501} (103,501)
Tax on loss 12 (430) 8o2
Loss from continuing operations {89,931) (102,609)
Discontinued operations
Loss on discontinued operations 13 (982) (962)
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the financial year {90,913} {103,571)

Total comprehensive loss from continuing operations is attributable to:
- Owners of the parent company (89,931) (102,609)
- Non-controlling interests - -

(89,931} (102,609)
Total comprehensive loss from discontinued operations is attributable to:
- Owners of the parent company (368) 2,207
- Non-controlling interests (614) {3.169)

(982) (962)

The accompanying notes on pages 24 - 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

18



LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2021
Consolidated Notes 2021 2021 2020 2020
£'000 £'000 £000 €000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 152 1,074
Investment properties 15 33,869 12,630
Right of use assets 25 774 1,885
Deferred tax assat 27 - 500
34,802 16,189
Current assets
inventories 20 513,458 802,137
Trade and other receivables 21 8,646 6,166
Cash and cash equivalents 27,439 8,421
549,543 617,724
Total assets 584,345 633,512
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 (34,3686) (27,322)
Leases 25 (226) (1033
(34,592} (27.425)
Non=-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 24 (401,716} (660,743
Leases 25 (568} {1,923)
Other payables 23 (13,250) {13,250)
Deferred tax liability 27 - (154)
(415,534) (676,070)
Total liahilities (450,126) {703,495)
Net assets/(liabifities) 134,218 {69,582)

————
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LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
AS AT 30 JUNE 2021

Consolldated Noles 2021 2020
£'000 £’000

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

company

Share cagital 28 - -

Share premium 28 294 857 -

Capital contrnibution 28 280,000 280,000

Retained eamings 28 {440,638) {350,339)

Equity attributable to owness of the parent 134,218 {70,339)

company

Non-controlling interast - 757

Total equity 134,219 (69,582)

The accompanying notes on pages 24 - 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

nancial statements were approved by tha hoard of directors and authorised for issue on 17 March 2022 and are
on its behalf by:

Mr Mark Dickinson

Director
Company Reglstration No. 08221003
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LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2021
Company Notes 2021 2021 2020 2020
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 157 324
Investment properties 15 1,522 1,522
Right of use assels 25 774 993
investmenls 16 11,757 441
Deferred tax asset 27 - 500
14,210 3.780
Current assets
Inventories 20 1.979 11,940
Trade and other racsivables 21 411,757 364,941
Cash and cash equivalents 5,106 338
418,842 377,218
Total assets 433,052 380,999
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 {40,409} (45,059)
Leases 25 {226) (194)
(40,635} (45,253)
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 24 (48,031} {252.402)
Leases 25 (568) (816)
(46,599) {253,218)
Total liabilitles (87,234) (298,471)
Net assets 345,818 82,528

———

19




LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
AS AT 30 JUNE 2021

Company Notes 2021 2020

) £000 £'000
Equity
Share capital 28 - -
Share premium 28 294,857 -
Capital contribution: 28 280,000 280,000
Retained earnings 2 (229,039) (197,472)
Total equity - 345,818 82,528

—_—

As permitted by s408 Companies Act 2006, the company has not presented its own income statement and related
notes. The company's loss for the year was £31,567,000 (2020: £52,429,000 ioss).

The accompanying notes on pages 24 - 52 forrn an integral part of these financial statements.

nancial statements wene approved by the board of directars and authorised for issue on 17 March 2022 and are
on its behaif by:

Mr Mark Dickinson
Director
Company Registration No. 08221003
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LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Consolidated Share Share Capital Retained Total Nan- Total
capital premium contrib- eamings controlling controlling equity
ution interest interest
£'000 £000 £000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £000
Balance at1 July - - 280,000 (249,937) 30,063 3,926 33,989
2019
Year ended 3¢
June 2020:
Total comprehensive - - - (100,402) (100,402) (3,169) (103,571}
loss
Balance at 30 June - - 280,000 (350,339) (70,339) ' 757 (69,582)
2020
Year ended 30
June 2021:
Issue of share - 294,857 - - 204 857 - 294 857
capital (note 28}
Total comprehensive - - - {90,299) (90,209) {614) (90,913)
loss
Disposal of - - - - - (143) (143)
subsidiary (note 13)
Sajance at30 June . 204857 280,000 (440,638 134,219 - 134219

The accompanying notes on pages 24 - 52 form an integral part of these financia! statements.
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LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Company

Balance at 1 July 2019

Year ended 30 June 2020:
Total comprehensive loss

Balancae at 30 June 2020
Year ended 30 June 2021:
lssue of share capital (note 28)

Total comprehensive loss

Balance at 30 June 2021

Share Share Capital Retained Total
capital premium contribution eamings equity
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
- - 230,000 {145,043) 134,957

- - - {52,429) (52,429)

- - 280,000 (197,472} 82,628

- 294,857 - - 294 B57

- - - {31.567) (31,587)

- 254,857 280,000 (22%,039) 345818

The accompanying notes on pages 24 - 52 farm an integral part of these financial statements.
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LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Consolidated

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated/{(absorbed) by operations
Interest and issua cosls paid

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase aof property, plant and equipment
Cash transferred on disposal of subsidiary
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Finanting activiies

Proceeds from borowings
Repayment of borowings

Loans from parent undertakings
Loans from related parties
Repayment of related party loans
Repayment of ieases

Net cash generated from financing
activities

Net increase/(decrease]) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Notes

30

2021 2021

£'000 £000

19,587

(24,965)

(5,378}
(34)
(5)

(39)
16,224
(73.114)
63,680
18,000
(1.000)
(352)

23435

18,018

9,421

27.439

2020
£000

(181)
142

485,148
(458,098)
47,200

(3;57)

2029
£'000

(46.,470)

(27,539)

{74.009)

(49)

73,883

(175)

9596

9,421
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LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

11

Accounting policies

Company information

Lifestory Group Limited ("the company") is a private company limited by shares incorporated in the United
Kingdom and registered in England and Wales. The registered office is 105-107 Bath Road, Cheltenham,
Gloucestershire, GL53 7PR.

The group consists of Lifestory Group Limiled and all of its subsidiaries.

The principal accounting policies apolied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, uniess otherwise
stated.

Basis of preparation

The group financial statements consolidate those of the company and ils subsidiaries (together referred ta
as the "group™). The company financial statermnents present information aboul the company as & separate
entity and not about its group.

The group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with internationa
accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The group and
company financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention as modified for
financial assets and liabilities at fair value as set out below.

The company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 (Financial Reporting
Standard 101) 'Reduced Disclosure Framework' as issued by the Financial Reporting Council as the
company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 (Financial Reparting Standard 100}

As permitted by FRS 101, the company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under
that standard in relation Yo financial instruments, presantation of a cash flow statement and certain related

party transactions.

The financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, which is the functionat and presentation currency
of the group and the company. Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest
£'000.

As permitted by s408 Companies Act 2006, the company has not presented its own income statement and
refated notes. The company's loss for the year was £31,567,000 (2020: £52,429,000 loss).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
eslimates. It also requires management to exarcise s judgement in the process of applying the group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 3.
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LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

1.2

1.3

Accounting poficies {continued)

Basis of consolidation

All business combinations, including those involving entities under commen control, are accounted for by
applying the acquisition method. Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as
at tha acquisition date, which is the date on which contsel is transferred to the group.

The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transfermed,
the liabifities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree, and the equity interests issued by the group. The
consideration transferrad includes the fair value of any asset or liability resuiting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilites and contingent liabilites assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair vafue or at the non-centroliing interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition related costs are expansed as incumed.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. The group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable retums from its invelvernent with the entity and has the ability to aflect those retumns through
ils power over the entily. In assessing control, the group takes into cansideration potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable.

The acquisition date is the date on which control is transferrad te the acquirer, The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consclidated hnancial statements from the date that control commences Until
the date that control ceases.

Consclidation of a subsidiary bagins when the company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, the resulls of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in profit or loss from the date the company gains control until the date when the
company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and fransactions, and any unrealised income and expenses$ 2rising from infra-group
transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of impaiment.

Going concern

In assessing the going concem position of the group and company, the directors have conducted a rigorous
assessment of the group's ability to operate for the foreseeable future. This assessment included an in-depth
review of the group cash flow forecasts taking into consideration the latest cperating environment. A base
case scenario was prepared against which the directors expect to deliver, over which a number of downside
sensitivities were overlaid to forecast the impact of reasonably possible outcemes. In order fo address the
reasonably worst-case scenarie and to support continued growth of the business, the directors have
determined that a further £27m of funding is required in the foraseaable future.

In consideration of the mitigations available to the Group, the Directors acknowledge that the group has a
£62m loan facility with its sister company, Anthology Group Limited. The loan term is 3 years and ends in
March 2024. On 30 June 2021 the loan was £17m, and up to 28 February 2022 a further £44m had been
drawn, bringing the loan balance to £61m. At the date of this report there have been no further drawdowns.
The directors, who are common to bath groups, with two of Anthology Group's direclors also being Lifestory
Group directors, will manage the flow of funds from Anthology Group Limited to Lifestory Group Limited. This
will provide up to £1m of additiona! funding for Lifestory Group Limited under the intergroup facility. The
directors have assessed the abitity of Anthology Group Limited, through sensitised cash flow forecasts, to
provide the raquired level of cash funding as and when required by Lifestory Group Limited. The directors
were satisfied that sufficient funding would be available as required.
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1.3

14

1.5

Accounting policies (continued)

Golng concern {continued)
Further funding is expected within Lifestory Group from certain funding events over the next 12 months that
have not yet been concluded at the date of signing this report. Those events are:

» the completion of a £50.0m development loan for three new sites in Lifestory Group Limited that
supports the delivery of these sites over the next 18 months. At the date of this report, tarms have
been agreed with the lender for this facility and will be subject to lender diligence and credit
commiitee approval. This is expected to complete within 1 month of the date of this report

= The sale of rental properties totalling £30.5m to a UK entity which is under common control within
the Fund managed by Oaktree Europsan Principal Fund Jll. This is expected to complete within 1
moenth of the date of this report.

e A £24 0m refinance of a completed development, with a stock ioan replacing developer finance.
Loan terms from lenders have been received and the facility is expected to be in place within 2
months of the date of this report.

* A development loan to be put in place which will release £10.5m of funding. The development loan
is for five new sites in Lifestory Group Limited that supports the delivery of these sites over the next
18 months. At the date of this report, terms are being discussed with lenders.

These matters are all in the normal course of trading for the group and reflect the ongoing freasury activities
at the current point in time. The business is very experienced in closing these transactions and considers all
of these items to be low risk. As a resuit, the directors believe that the going concern basis of preparation is
appropriate in these financial statements. However, given these have not yet concluded at the date of
approval of these financial statements, they, in combination, create a material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt on the group and company’s ability to continue as a going concern which in turn may result
in the group and company being unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course
of business.

Revenue
Revenue is generaled from sale of individual residential homes, land, frecholds and leaseholds.

Revenue for all revenue streams is recognised upon legal compietion of contracts at which point the group’s
performance obligations are met. Revenue is recognised at the agreed contract price which Is typically due
on legal completion.

Revenue arises solely in the UK and is stated net of value added tax.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost, net of

depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over their useful lives
on the following bases:

Machinery and vehicles 5 years
Fixtures, fittings and equiprment 5 years
Computers and software I years

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carrying value of the asset and is recognised in the income statement.
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1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Accounting policies {continued)

Investment properties

Investment property, which is property held to ear rentals andior for capital appreciation, is initially
recognised at cost, which includes the purchase cost and any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequently
it is measured at cost less provision for impairment. Impairments to investment properties are recognised
within administrative expenses.

Non-current investments
In the parent company financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Impainnent of non-current assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenaver avents or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
assetl's carmying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The rectverable amount is the higher of an asset's
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely independant cash inflows (cash-generating units).
Prior impaiments of non-financial assets are reviewed for possible reversal at each reporting date.

Inventories

lnventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs comprise land and development
costs. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price less cost to completion and disposal,
Impaiments and impairment reversals are recognised in cost of sales.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, depasits held at call with banks and other short term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial position when the group
or campany becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are only offset, and the net amount reported in the cansolidated statement of financial position and
staternent of comprehensive income, when there is a currently enforceabie legal right to offset the recogrised
amounts and the group or company intends o seltle on @ net basis or realise the asset and liability
simultaneously.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are diractly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financia! assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to ar deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilittes, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assats or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financlal agsets

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair
value, depending an the dlassification of the financial assets. The group or company's financial assels congist
of financial assets at amortised cost and derivative financial instruments.
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Accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Ciassification of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are measured subseguently at amortised cost using

effective interest rate method:

* The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

¢ The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Impalrment of financial assets

The group ar company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial assels that
are measured at amortised cost which comprise mainly trade receivables and intercompany receivables. The
amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition of the respective financial instrument. The group or company always recognises lifetime
ECL on trade receivables and intercompany receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision matrix based on the group or company’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debters, general economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current as well as the forecasi direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate,

Derivative financlal instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date a contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at fair value through profit and loss {(FVTPL). The respeclive fair value
movements are reflected within the statement of comprehensive income as other gains and losses. The
graup or company's derivative financial instruments comprise the Hackwood option {note 19).

Derecognition of financial assets

The group or company derecognises a financial asset only when the cantractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantiaily all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. Iif the group or company neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the group or company
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. if the
group or company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the group or company continues to recognise the financial asset and alsc recognises a collateralised
barrowing for the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities

The classification of financial liabilities at initial recognition depends on the purpose for which the financial
liability was issued and its charactenistics. All purchases of financia! liabilities are recarded on trade date,
befng the date on which the group or company becomes party to the contractual requirements of the financial
liability. Unless otherwise indicated the carrying amounts of the group or company's financial liabilities
approximate to their fair values. The group or company's financial liabilities consist of financial liabilites
measured at amortised cost.
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1.1

Accounting policies {continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial ligbilities measured subsequently at amortised cost

Financial liabikties that are not (i} contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination, (i} held
for trading, or {iii) designated as al fair value through prafit and loss (FVTPL), are measured subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The group or company’s financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost comprise trade and other payables, and laans and borrowings. The effective interest method
is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial assetfiability and of allocating interest
income/expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts astirmated future
cash receipis/payments through ihe expected life of the financial asset/liability or, where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Deracognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (in whole or in part) is derecognised when the group or company has extinguished its
contractual obligations, it expires ar is cancelled. Any gain or loss on derecognition is taken to the statement
of comprehensive income.

Equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the company are treated as equity only to the extenl that they do not meet
the definition of a financial liability. Crdinary shares are classified as equity and are racorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss comprises cument and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement
except to the extent that it relales to items recognised directly in equity, in which case il is recognised in
aquity.

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the period, using tax
ratas enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respact of
previous periods.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amaunt of assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacled or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the exient that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash
bonus if the group or company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result
of past sefvice provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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1.186

Accounting policies (continued)

Retirement benefits
A defined contribution pension plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the group or company
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive cbligation to pay further

amounts.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the
meome slalement in the periods during which services are rendered by employees. Differences between
contributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments
in the statement of financial position.

Leases
The graup accounts for a contract, or a portion of a contract, as a lease when it conveys the right to use an
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Leases are those contracts that satisfy the following
criteria:

= There is an identified asset;

» The company oblains substantially all the econamic benefits from use of the asset; and,

* The company has the right to direct use of the azset.

The group considers whether the supplier has substantive substitution rights. If the supplier does have those
rights, the contract is not identified as giving rise to a lease. In determining whether the group obtains
substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset, the group considers only the economic benefits
that arise from use of the asset. In determining whether the group has the right to direct use of the asset, the
group considers whether it directs how and for what purpose the asset is used throughout the period of use.
if the contract or portion of a contract does not satisfy these criteria, the group applies other applicable IFRSs
tather than IFRS 16.

tease liabilities are measured at the present value of the contractual payments due to the lessor over the
lease term, with the discount rate determined by reference to the rate inherent in the lease unless this is not
readily determinable, in which case the group's incremental borrowing rate on commencement of the lease
is used. Variable lease paymenls are only included in the measurement of the lease liability if they dependg
oh an index or rate, In such cases, the initial measurement of the lease liability assumes the variable element
will remain unchanged throughout the leasa tarm. Other variable lease payments are expensed in the period
to which they relate.

On initial recognition, the carrying value of the lease liability also includes:
¢« Amounts expected to be payable under any residual value guarantee;
= The exercise price of any purchase aplion granted in favour of the company if it is reasonably certain

to assess that option; and,
+ Any penalties payable for terminating the lease, if the term of the lease has been estimated based

on termination option being exercised.

Right of use assets are initially measured at the amount of the lease liability, reduced for any lease incentives -
received, and increased for:

* lLease payments made at or before commencement of the lease;

« |Initial direct costs incurred; and,

= The amount of any provision recognised where the group is contractually required ta dismantls,
remove or reslore the leased asset.

Subsequent to initial measurement lease liabilities increase as a result of interest charged at a constant rate
on the balance outstanding and are reduced for lease payments made. Right-of-use assets are amortised
on a straightine basis over the remaining term of the lease.
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Accounting policlas (continued)

Leases (cantinued)

When the group revises its estimate of the term of any lease (because, for example, it re-assesses the
probability of a lessee extension or termination oplion being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the
lease tiability to reflect the payments to make over the ravised term, which are discounted using a revised
discount rate. The carrying value of lease liabilities is similarly revised when the variable element of future
lease payments dependent on a rate or index is revised, except tha discount rate remains unchanged. In
both cases an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use asset, with the revised
carrying amount being amonrtised over the remaining (revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset is adjusted to zero, any further reduction is recognised in profit or loss.

The group did not have any finance leases.

Operating lease income
Operating lease income is recognised in line with lease agreements. Lease incentives are recognised over

the life of the lease.
Change in accounting policy
Impact of initial application of other zmendments to IFRS Standards and Interpretations

In the current year, the group has applied a number of amendments to IFRS Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Internalional Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that are effective for an annual period that
begins on or after 1 January 2020. Their adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on
the amounts reported in these financial statements.

New and revised IFRS Standards in issue but not yet effective
Al the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the group has not applied the following new and

revised IFRS Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective.

»  Amendments to IAS 1 - Classification of Liabiliies as Current or Non-current

¢+  Amendments to IFRS 3 - Reference to the Conceptual Framewark

« Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle - Amendments to IFRS 1 Firsttime
Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards, IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, IFRS 16

Leases
¢+ Amendments fo IAS 1 and IFRS Praclice Statement 2 - Disdesure of Accounting Policies
* Amendments to IAS 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimates

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material impact an the
financial statements of the group in future periods.

Critical judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the group and company's accounting policies, the directors are required l¢ make
judgemaents, estimates and assumplions about the camrying amount of assets and liabilites that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associaled assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant Actual results may differ from these
eslimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed an an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounling
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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3 Criical judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Critical judgements
The following judgements (apart fram thnse invalving estimates) have had the most significant effect on

amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Recognifion & subsequent derecognition of subsidiary

Hackwood Homes Limited has previously been recognised under the acquisition method despite the
company holding 33.3% of the ordinary share capital, given the company has an unrestricted option tg
acquire the remaining 66.7% of share capital and therefore has unrestricted potential voting rights over 100%
of the company.

On 4 March 2021 Hackwood Homes Limited entered administration, on this date it was derecognised as a
subsidiary by the group. This is because the group deemed this a loss of control as the unrestricted option
ta acquire the remaining 66.7% would no longer obtain unrestricted voting rights over 100% of the company
and thers was no intention or eccnomic benefit to exercising the option.

Going concern

The directors have judged it appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis. In
drawing that conclusion, they have made judgements in relation to the occurrence of specific events within
twelve manths of the date of approval of these financial statements. Further details on those judgements are

provided in note 1.3.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The estimates and assumptions which have a significant sk of causing a material adjustment to the camying
amount of assets and liabilities are as follows,

Carrying value of inventories and estimation of costs to complete and achievable revenues
Inventories are staled at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Such inventories include land, work in
progress and completed homes. Residential development is largely speculative by nature, and it is normal
that not all inventories are covered by forward sales contracts. To assess the net realisable value of land
held for development and sites in the course of construction and completed sites, the group maintains a
financial appraisal of the likely revenue which will be generated when these inventories became residential
retirement properties for sale and are sokl. Where the financial appraisal demonstrates that the revenue will
exceed the costs of the inventories and other associated costs of constructing the residential retirement
propertias, the inventories are stated at cost, Where the projected revenue is lower, the extent to which there
is a shorifali is written off through the statement of comprehensive income leaving the inventories stated at
net realisable value. To the extent that the revenues which can be generated change, or the final cost to
complete for the site varies from estimates, the realisable value of inventories may be different.

Appraisals teking into account estimated achievable revenues, actual inventory, and costs to complete as at
each reporting date, have been completed and identified an impairment of £20,755,000 (2020: £32,555,000)
and a raversal of a previous impairment charge of £681,000 (2020: £nil). These estimates were made by
management having regard to actual sales prices, together with competitor and marketplace evidence.
Should there be a future significant decline in UK house pricing, impairments of tand, work in progress and
completed sites may be necessary. Further detail on the value of inventories is in note 20.

Deferred tax

Management assesses whether there will be sufficient future profits to utilise deferred tax assets recognised
by reference lo the estimated profits generated by the sites where planning has been granted, construction
has commenced or are completed, based on the appraisals noted above. The current year position has been
arrived at by undertaking the assessment of future profits and applying an appropriate future tax rate, over a
future period of three years. These assessments indicated there would not be sufficient future taxable profits
against which some of the losses could be relieved. Accordingly, there is no deferred tax asset (2020:
£500,000) recagnised by the group and company.
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3 Critical judgements and key scurces of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Carrying value of intercompany balances heid by the company

Intercompany balances held by the company against fellow group members are subject to an annhual
assessment as lo their recoverability. To assess the recoverable amounts from receivable balances held, the
group maintains a financial appraisal for each entity within the group. Where the financial appraisal
demonstratas that the discounted cashflows generated will exceed the intercompany payable then ne
impaiment is required on the intercompany receivable held by the company. Where the projected discounted
cashflows are less than tha intercompany payables, the extent to which there is a shorifall is written off in the
company through the statement of comprehensive income. Following the assessment, a total impairment of
£4.851,000 (2020: £nil) was recognised in the company's profit and loss.

4 Revenue

Revenue in the year represents income from sale of sheltered accommeodation for the elderly as well as land
and freshold title sales. It arises entirely in the United Kingdom.

Revenue can be analysed as follows:

2021 2020

£'000 £'000

Legal completions on retiretnent property 81,576 78020
Land sales 19,640 11,577
101,216 89,597

Of the above £nil (2020: £131,000) relates to discontinued operations, see note 13.

Contract assets and liahbilities

Contract assets arise when the group has right to consideraticn in exchange for residential housing that it
has transferred to a customer but not yet invoiced. The group did not have any contract assets at the reporting
date (2020: none).

Contract liabilities arise when a customer pays consideration in advance before the residential housing is
transfemed to the customer, The group did not have any contract liabilities at the reporting date {2020: none).

5 Other operating income
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Rental income 1,203 687
Other income 3t 251
Related party service agreement 2,687 -
3,921 938

Related party service agreement relates to a service recharge charged to sister company London Real Estate
Development Limited. Further detail zan be found in note 29.
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6 Operating loss

Operating loss for the year is stated after charging/{crediting):
Depreciation of owned property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of right of use assets

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense

Inventaries impaimaent losses recognised

Reversal of previous inventory impairment charges

Impairment of investment property

2021
£'000

20
258
97,388
20,755
(681)
1.583

2020
£000

630
293

82,700

32,556 .

During the year the group received furlough payments of £109,000 (2020: £472,000). The deferral of PAYE
and national insurance contributions, which forms part of the UK government's Covid 19 support initiative

was valued at £nil (2020: £1,424,000).

7 Auditor's remuneration

Fees payable to the company's auditor and associates;

For audit services
Audit of the financial statements of the group and company
Audit of the financial statements of the company's subsidiaries

For other services
Taxation compliance services
Other taxation services

] Employees

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
144 a3
188 157
332 250
54 53

77 16
131 69

The average monthly number of persons (inciuding directors) empioyed by the group during the year was:

Administration
Sales

Their aggregate remuneration comprised:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension cosls

2024 2020
Number Number
111 165
49 48
160 213
Group
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
11,284 13,803
1,522 1.838
350 412
13,156 16,053
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10

11

Directors’ remuneration

Group
201 2020
£'000 £'000
Remuneration for qualifying services 889 1,404

Remuneration disclosed above includes the following amounts paid to the highest paid diractor:

2021 2020
E£'000 £000
Remuneration for qualifying services 839 849

No directors were enrolled in any money purchase pension schemes during either the current or prior year,
During the year compensation for loss of office 2mounted to £nil (2020: £320,000).

Retirement benefit schemes

2021 2020
E'000 £'000
Defined contribution schemes
Charge to profit or loss in respect of defined contribution schemes 350 412

A defined contribution pension scheme is operated for al! qualifying employees. The assels of the scheme
are held separately from those of the group in an independently administered fund.

At the reporting date, contributions amounting to £76,000 (2020: £51,000) were payable te the scheme and
are included within other payables (note 22). ‘

Finance cests

2021 2020

£'000 £'000

Interest payable on bank leans 25185 27,842
Interest payable on other loans and leases B2 109
Amortisation of bank facility costs 6,853 6,728
Interest payable to group undertakings 7.608 12,856
Interest payable to related parties 198 -
39,896 47,535

Of the above £47,000 (2020: £13,000) relates to discontinued operations, see note 13.
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12 Taxation

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Current tax
UK corporation tax on profits for the current period {191) -
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (541) -
Total current tax credit {732) -
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Deferred tax
Crigination and reversal of temporary differences (70) (382)
Change in racognised deferred tax assets 500 {500)
Change in recognised deferred tax liabilities (84) -
Total defarred tax 348 (852)
Total tax credit {386) (852)

The actual chargef{credit) for the year can be reconciled to the expacied charge for the year based on the
profit or loss and the standard rate of tax as follows:

From continuing operations 2021 2020
£'000 E'000
Loss before taxation {89,501) (102,609)
Expécted tax credil based on the standard rate of corporation tax in the {17,005) (19,496)
UK of 19.00% (2020: 19.00%)
Change in recognised deferred tax assets 500 (500)
Unrelieved tax losses 17,005 19,495
Short-term temporary differences {70) {392)
Taxation charge/{credit) 430 (892}
From discontinued operations 201 2029
£'000 £°000
Loss before taxation {1,798) (862)
Expected tax credit based on the standard rate of corporation tax in the {342) (183)
UK of 19.00% (2020: 19,00%}
Change in recognised deferred tax liabilities {84) -
Unrelieved tax losses utilised (541) 183
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in deterrmining taxable 151 -
prafit
Taxation credit (816) -
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13

Discontinued operations

Qn 4 March 2021, Hackwocd Homes Limited entered administration, al this date the Group no longer
recognised Hackwood Homes Limited as a subsidiary and it was derecagnised from the consolidated set of
financial statements. As a result of its administration pracess the operation was cansidered discontinued.

The results of the discontinued gperations, which have been included in the loss for the yaar, were as follows:

2021 2020

£'000 £'000
Revenueg C - 131
Cost of saies (682) -
Gross (loss)/profit (682) 131
Administrative expenses {1,004) {1,080)
Loss on disposal (65) -
Oparating loss (1,751) (949)
Finance cosls (47} 13
Loss before taxation (1,798) (962)
Tax on loss 816 -
Loss for the financial year (982) (962)

In the above, the group has recognised its share of the loss totalling £65,000 that arose on the disposal of
Hackwood Homes Limited.

Hackwood Homes Limited had the following impact on the consolidated cash flow statement; net cash outflow
from operating activities of £2, 746,000, net cash inflow from investing activities of £629,000, and net cash
inflow from financing activities of £1,990,000, with a total decrease in cash of £127,000 for the period to 4
March 2021,

The 2020 comparative figures included in the stalement of total comprehensive income was represented,
with the £962,000 removed from continuing operations and presented as a loss from discontinued operations.
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14 Property, plant and equipment

Group Machinery Fixtures, fittings Computers Total
& vehicles & equipment & software

£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Cost
At 1 July 2019 1,624 1,380 2,608 5612
Additions - 31 160 191
Cisposals (265} (17) - (282)
At 30 June 2020 1,359 1,394 2,768 5,521
At 1 July 2020 1,359 1,394 2,768 5,521
Additions - 1 i3 34
Disposal of subsidiary (1,171} {533) (78} (1,782)
At 30 June 2021 188 862 2,723 3,773
Depreciation
At 1 July 2019 979 823 2,155 3,857
Depreciation charge 126 209 295 630
Disposals (140} - - (140}
At 30 June 2020 965 1,032 2,450 4,447
At 1 July 2020 965 1,032 2,450 4,447
Depreciation charge - 11 190 201
Dispasal of subsidiary {779) {197) (58) {1.034)
At 30 June 2021 186 846 2,582 3,614
Carnrying amount
At 30 June 2021 2 16 141 158
At 30 June 2020 394 362 318 1074
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1“4 Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Company Fixtures, fittings Computers Total
& equipment & software
£000 £'000 £000
Cost
At 1 July 2019 626 2548 3174
Additiens 18 157 175
At 30 June 2020 644 2,705 3,349
At 1 July 2020 644 2,705 3,349
Additions 1 18 19
Disposals - N _
At 30 June 2021 845 2,723 3,368
Depreciation
At1 July 2019 801 2,111 2712
Depreciation charge 24 289 313
At 30 June 2020 B2S 2,400 3,025
At 1 July 2020 625 2400 3,025
Depreciation charged 11 175 186
At 30 June 2021 636 2,575 3211
Carrying amount
At 30 June 2021 9 148 157
At 30 Jure 2020 19 305 324
15 Investment properties
Group Company
£000 £'000
Valued at cost less impairment
At 1 July 2019 7,583 1,582
Additions 8,081 -
Disposals (3,034) (60}
At 30 June 2020 12,630 1.522
Adgditions 26,774 -
Disposals (3.852) -
Impairment losses (1.583) -
At 30 June 2021 33,869 1,522
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16

investment properties (continued}

Investment properties comprise £1,522,000 (2020: £1,522,000} of residual interests in sold properties where
there is no set redemption date and no rent or interest is charged. and £32,343,000 (2020: £11,108,000] of
investment properties which are fully owned and rented out.

The fair value of investment properties within the group at 30 June 2021 was £33,869,000 (2020:
£12,630,000) and the company was £1,522,000 (2020; £1,522,000). For investment property of residual
interests, the fair value is calculated using the UK house price index, then applying this to the cost of the
investment and factoring when acquired.

Forinvestment properties rented out, the fair value and the necoverabie value is determined by rentals yields,
which is calculated using the current book value and estimated annual rental income for 12 months., This
rental yiekd is compared ta the benchmark UK market yields for equivalent property, which is calculated using
tatest market reperts published by reputable property valuers. If the rental yields are lower an impaiment
position is identified, and the book value would be written down until the required yield level is met. In the
current year an impairment of £1,583,000 (2020: £nil) was charged in the year. This was recognised and is
presented in the total comprehensive income statement within administrative expenses. Investment
properties of £32,343,000 (2020: £11,108,000) have been pledged as security for certain of the group's
borrowings and trade and other payables.

Total rental income earned in the year from investment propenies was £1,203.000 (2020: £687,000). Direct
operating expenses arising from investment property that generated rental income was £292,000 (2020:
£479,000). Direct operating expenses arising from investment property that did not generate rental income
was Enil {2020: £nil).

Investments
Notes Group Gompany
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £'000 £'0c0 £000
Investments in subsidiaries 17 - - 11,757 441

The company has investments in subsidiary undertakings as listed in note 17. All subsidiaries are included
in the consolidated financial statements of Lifestery Group Limited.

Movements in non-cumrent investments

Company Shares in group

undertakings

£'000

At 30 June 2020 a41
Acquisitions 11,216
Disposals -
At 30 June 2021 11,767

On 23 June 2021 PegasusLife Property Holdings Limited transferred its £1 share capital relating to a 100%
shareholding in PegasusLife Cobham Limited ta Lifestory Group Limited. The consideration for this transfer
totalled £11,316,000.

On 4 March 2021 Hackwood Homes Limited was derecognised from tha Group. Hackwood Homes Limited
enterad administration and Lifestory Group Limited lost conirol of the subsidiary at this date. Hackwood
Homes Limited was held indirectly through PegasusLife Renaissance Holdings Limited. At the date of
derecognition Hackwood Homes Limited had net asse's of £207,000. With a share of 33.3% of these net
agsets a loss on disposal of £65,000 has been recognised in the loss from discontinued operations in the
statement of comprehensive income.
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Subsidiaries and related undertakings

At 30 June 2021, the company had investments in 100% of the ordinary share capital of the following
subsidiaries, all of which are incorporated in the UK and have a registered address of 105-107 Bath Road,

Cheltenham, Gloucestershire, GL53 7PR:

Principal

Name Cantrol
activity

Pegasusl ife Renaissance Holdings Limited Holding company Direct
All of us (Care) Limited Holding company Cirect
PegasusLife Group Limited Holding company Direct
PegasusLife Cohham Limited Property development Direct j
Pegasuslife Development Limited Property development Indirect
PegasusLife Lyndhurst Limited Property development Indirect
PegasusLife Development {Bartrams) Limited Property development Indirect T
PegasusLife Development (OBR) Limited Property development Indirect T
PegasusLife Development (Westminster) Limited | Property development Indirect
Pegasuslife Development - (QVH) Limitad Property development Indirect
All of us (Development) Limited Property development Indirect
Helicon Management Limited Management of real estate indirect T
Pegasus Life Limited Holding company Indirect
PegasusLife Holdings Limited Holding company Indirect
PegasuslLife Landlord Limited Hokding company indirect
PegasusLife Rental Limited Letting and real estate operations | indirect
Lifestory Development Heldings Limited Holding company Direct
Lifestory Development Land Limited Property development Indirect
Lifestory Development (Woobum Green) Limited Property development Indirect
Lifestory Development (Cranleigh) Limited Property development Indirect
Lifestory Development (West Byfleat) Limited Property development Indirect
Lifestory Development (Bath} Limited Property development Indirect
Lifestary Development (Quonians) Limited Property development Indirect
PegasusLife Landlord - Crowthome Limited Letting and real estate operalions | Indirect
PegasusLife Landiord - Rustington Limited Letting and real estate aperations | Indinect
PegasusLife Landlord Ace Sandbanks Limited Letting and real estate cperations | Indirect ]
Pegasuslife Landlord The Landing Limited Letting and real estate operations | Indirect
Pegasuslife Landlord Carriages Limited Letting and real estate operations | Indirect
Pegasuslife Landlord Chapter House Limited Letting and real estate operations | Indirect
Pegasustife Landlord Woodlands Limited Letting and real estate operations | Indirect
PegasuslLife Landlord Hortsley Limited Letting and real estate operations | Indirect
PegasuslLife Landlord Chapelweod Limited Letting and real estats operations | Indirect
Pegasustife Landlord No. 79 Fitzjohns Avenue Letling and reat estate operations | Indirect T
Limited
PegasusLife Landlord Stespleton Limited Letting and real estate operations | Indirect
PegasusLife Landlord - Sandhurst Limited Letting and raal estate operations | Indirect
PegasusLile Landlord - Leyton Road Limited Letting and real estate operations { Indirect ]
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17 Subsidiaries and related undartakings

PegasusLife Property Holdings Limited

Name Principal Control
activity
Pegasuslife Landlord JOH Limited Letting and real estate operations Indiract
Pegasuslife Landlord - Marina Gardens Letting and real estate operations Indirect
Limited
PegasusLife Landlord - Moors Nook Limited Letting and real estate operations Indirect
PegasuslLife Landlord - Belle Vue Limited Letling and real estate operations Indirect
PegasusLife Landlord The Vincent Limited Letting and real estate operations Indirect
PegasusLife Landlord - The Fitzroy Limited Letting and real estate operations Indirect
PegasusLife Landlord Wildernesse House Letting and real estate operations Indirect
Limited
Pegasuslife Landlord One Bayshill Road Letting and real estate cperations Indiract
Limited
PegasusLife Landlord Chimes Limited Letting and reai estate operations Indirect
Renaissance Freehold Limited Letting and real estata oparations Indirect
Lifastory Customer Operations Limited Management of real estate Indiract
Fleur De Lis Tea Rooms Christchurch Limited | Unlicensed cafe Indirect
Renaissance Retirement Limited Property development Indirect
Renaissance Assels Limitad Property development Indirect
PegasuslLife Landiord - Halmwood Limited Letting and real astate cperations Indirect
PegasusLife Landlord - Pogle Limited Letting and real estate cperations Indirect
PegasusLife Landlord - Vivene Limited Letting and real estate operations Indirect
PegasusLife Landlord - Taylar Place Limited Letting and real estate operations Indirect
PegasusLife Landlord - Kingsbury Grove Letting and real estate operations Indirect
Limited
PegasusLife Landlord - Bourne End Limited Letting and real estate operations Indirect
PegasusLife Landlord - Wimborne Limited Letting and real estate oparations Indirect
PegasusLife Landlord - Babbacombe Limited | Letling and real estate operations Indirect
PegasusLife Property Limited Holding company Indirect
Holding company Indirect
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19

20

Subsidiary companies audit exemptions

The following group entities are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the
audit of their individual accounts for the year ended 30 June 2021 by virtue of section 478A and section 479C

of the Companies Act 2006

PegasusLife Lyndhurst Limited {Registration number: 10304225)

Pegasuslife Renaissance Holdings Limited (Registration nurnber: 10304306)
PegasusLife Cobham Limited (Registration number: 10670365)

PegasusLife Development (Bartrams) Limited (Registration number: 10468955)
Pegasuslife Development (OBR) Limited {Registration number: 10470894)
Pegasuslife Development (Westminster) Limited (Registration number: 10416531)
Pegasusl ife Development - {QVH) Limited (Registration number: 10421199)
All ot us {Care) Limited {Registration number: 09731746)

All of us {Development) Limited (Registration number: 09732947}

PegasusLife Limited (Registralion number: 09565232)

Pegasuslife Holdings Limited (Registration number. 09553221}

PegasusLife Landlord Limited (Registration number: 08804304)

PegasusLife Property Limited (Registration number: 11698628)

PegasusLife Group Limited (Registration number: 11787441)

Fleur De Lis Tea Rooms Christchurch Limited (Registration number: 09243950)
Renaissance Retirement Limited (Registration number: 3259684)

Lifestory Development Haldings Limited (Registration number:13029782)

L N R L B Y I I Y T I I

Derivative financial instruments

The group acquired a call aption to purchase the remaining €66.7% interest in Hackwood Homes Limiled. The
call option is exercisable at any time at the discretion of Lifestory Group Limited, expiring on the earlier of the
61h anniversary of the acquisition on 21 December 2017 and an IPO within the group.

The fair value of the Hackwood Option Is £nil (2020: £nil} calculated on the assumption that since the
company has entered administration the level of EBITDA generated by Hackwood over the option period is
not expecled to be sufficient to place the option in-the-meney. Accordingly, the option is forecast o be out-
of-the-money and has Enil vaiue.

Inventories

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £'00a £'000
Completed homes 330,990 350,526 - -
Work in progress 157,089 172,665 - -
Land 25379 78,9456 1,979 11,940
513,458 602,137 1,979 11,940

Inventories of £498,354,000 (2020: £565,002,000) have been pledged as security for certain of the group's
borrowings and trade and other payables. The company has not pledged any of its inventory as security for
the company's barrowings (2020: Enit). Cost of invenlory recognised as an expense during the year was
£97,388,000 (2020: £62,700,000).

43



LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

21 Trade and other receivables
Group Company
2021 2020 201 2020
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 399,606 363,386
Amounts owed by related parties (note 29) 2,674 - 11,017 -
Other receivables 4485 4,182 530 844
Prepayments 1,587 1.984 604 711
8,646 6.166 411,757 364,941

The directors consider that the carrying values of trade and other receivables approximate their fair value.

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand, unsecured and are non-interest
bearing.

More detall on amounts owed by related parties can be seen in note 29,

22 Trade and other payables

Group Company
201 2020 2021 2020
£°000 £°000 £000 £000
Current
Trade payables 5,985 9,775 1,301 2,772
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 32,715 37,359
Other payables 2,168 4,213 2,055 1,955
Accruals 26,213 13,334 4,338 2,973
34,366 27,322 40,409 45,059

The directors consider that the carrying values of trade and other payables approximate their fair value.

Amounts owed !o subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand, unsecured and are non-interest
bearing.

The average credit period taken for trade purchases by the group is 28 days (2020 31 days). For the
company, this was 61 days (2020: 42 days).

23 Other payablas

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £000 £000 £000
Non-current
Other payables 13,250 13,250 - -

Cther payables relate to loan exit fees on the Sculptor facility which will be payable on 4 July 2023,
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24 Loans and borrowings
Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

£°000 £'000 £°000 £000

Bank loans 369,557 428,526 - -
[ssue casts (13,872) {20,185) - -
Loans from parent undertakings 28,833 252,402 28,833 252,402
Loans from related parties 17,198 - 17,198 -
401,716 660,743 486,031 252,402

Payable within one year - - - -
Payable after one year 401,716 660,743 46,031 252,402

The loans from parent undertakings incur annual interest of 6% and are due for repayment on the earlier of
30 September 2025 and the date on which OCM Luxembourg EPF Ill S.a.r.l. ceases to hold, directly or
indirectty, more than 50% of the issued share capital in, or business assets of, the company.

On 9 March 2021, the group entered into a £35,000,000 loan agreement with its sister company, Anthology
Group Limited, On 25 June 2021 this facility was increased to £42 600,000. The loan is unsecured, repayabie
on 9 March 2024, and attracts interest of 5.00%. On 7 December 2021 the facility was increased to
£62,000,000.

Bank loans comprise:

Sculptor Petrel Investment $.3.r.. :

A £525,000,000 loan facility with Sculptor Petrel Investment 5.a.r). was agreed on 28 June 2019 with the
first drawdown made on 4 July 2019. It has a 4-year term ending 4 July 2023 and incurs annuzl interest of
5.45% above LIBOR for 3 years, then increases to 6.5% in year 4. The option to extend the term by 1 year
is available to the company and this would incur interest of 5.75%. The loan is secured by way of a first
charge over the assets of PegasusLife Developments Limiled, Renaissance Assets Limited and Pegasuslife
Rental Limited, and a debenture over the shares of PegasuslLife Group Limited.

Daiwa Loan

On 23 June 2021, the group entered into a £9,475,000 loan facility agreement with Daiwa Capital Markets
Europe Limited. It is a 15-manth facility, is secured against cartain land sites within the group and attracts
interest at 6.75% per annum.
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25 Leases
Leasehoid
Praoperty
Total
Group £000
Right of use assets
At 30 June 2020 1,985
Amortisation (258}
On disposal of subsidiary (953)
At 30 June 2021 774
Group
Lease liabilities
At 30 June 2020 (2,026)
Lease payments made 352
Unwinding of a discount {82)
On disposal of subsidiary 962
At 30 June 2021 (794)
Current (226)
Non-current (568)
{794)
Leasehold
Property
Total
Company £'000
Right of use assets
At 30 June 2020 993
Ameortisation {219)
At 30 June 2021 774
Company
Lease liabilities
At 3¢ June 2020 (1,010}
Lease payments made 261
Unwinding of a discount 45)
AL 30 Juna 2021 (794)
Currant {226)
Non-current (568)
(794)
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Financial instruments
Group Company

2021 2020 2024 2020

£000 £'000 £'000 £000
Carrying amount of financial agsets
Trade and other receivables 7.059 4,182 411,153 364,230
Cash and cash equivalents 27,439 9,421 5106 338
Carrying amount of financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost 449,332 660,737 B6,440 45,069

The company does not have any financiai instruments measured at fair values. The group nolds the
Hackwood option at fair value of £nil (2020: £nil), Financial instruments not measured at fair values include
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and borrowings.

The carrying values of the group's and company's financiaf instruments approximale their fair values.
No collateral is held as secunity for the group's and company's financial assets.
At the reporting date there were no trade receivables which were past due but not impaired (2020: £nil}.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its ¢ontractua! abligations resulting in financial
loss ta the group. The group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and
obtaining sufficient collateral where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
defaults. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the oounterparues are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Given the nature and legal framework of the UK housing industry the group has a low level of exposure to
credit risk.

Macket risk

Financial risk management
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rales, interest rates and equity
prices will affect the group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.

Exposure to market risk
The group has no material exposure to foreign cumency risk as all purchases and fingnce are curently

dengminated in sterling.

The group is only exposed to the risk of interest rate movements on the non-fixed rate bank lending
outstanding at the reporting date. The directors constantly review the necessity ta hedge this risk af
movements in LIBOR but the exposure is not currently expected to be material. Where loans are at a variable
rate and an increase in this rate will have a matesial impact on retums, suitable fnancial instruments are used
to limit this exposure. Loans are regularly reviewed to assess if fixing the interest would be prudent. based
on the term of the foan outstanding and view of the current market,

£82,713,000 (2020 £252,402,000) of the group's borrowings is at fixed rate with £362,614,000 {2020;
£428,526,000) at variable rate. A 1% movement in LIBOR would cause an increase in interest of £3,626,000
per annum.
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27

Financial instruments (continued)

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the exposure to interest rates movements on the non-fixed rate bank lending outstanding
at the reporting date. The group constantly reviews the necessity to hedge this risk of movements in LIBOR.
Where loans are at variable rates and an increase in this rate will have material impact on retums, suitable
financial instruments would be used to limit this exposura.

Liquidity risk management

The group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve bomowing
facilities, by continuously monitoring forecasts and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles
of financial assets and lizbilities.

Details of additional undrawn facilities that the group has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk are set
out below.

Group Company
2024 2020 2021 2020
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
Bank and related party loan facilities with
maturity dates through to 2024
- Amaunts used 386,643 414,609 17,000 -
- Amounts unused 189,832 110,361 25,000 -
576,475 525,000 42,000 -

Capital risk management

The group manages its capital to ensure that entitias in the group will be able to continue as a going concem
while maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
group's overall strategy remains unchanged from 2020.

The capital structure of the group consists of net debt (borrowings disclosed in note 24 after deducting cash
and bank balances) and equity of the group (comprising issued capital, share premium, capital confributions
and retained earnings as disclosed in the statement of changes in equity).

The group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Deferred taxation

The following are the major deferrad tax liabilities and assets recognised by the group and company, and
movemants thereon:

Group Liabilities Liabilities Assets Assets
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000

Tax losses - - - 500

Acquisition of subsidiaries - 154 - -

- 154 - 500
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Deferred taxation {continued)

Company Liabifities Liabilities Assets Assetg
2021 2020 2021 2020

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Tax losses - - - 500

Movements in the year are shown below

Wovements in the year: Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £7000 £'000 £'000
At1 July 20 (346) 548 (500) -
Debitf{credity to profit or loss (confinuing
operations) 430 {892) 500 (500)
Debit/(credit} ta profit or lkss {discontinued
operations) (B4) - - -
AL 30 Jure 21 - (346} - (500)

Defered tax liabilities relate to temporary differences ariging on fair value adjustments on acquisitions.

Al the reporting date, the group had unused losses of £331,853,000 (2020: £242,352,000} availabie to offset
against future profits. The company had unused losses of £264,343, 000 (2020: £238,127,000). Based on the
probable taxable profits available in the foreseeable future, being 3 years, based on the cument sites with
planning permission under construction or completed, a deferred tax asset has not been recognised on these
losses (2020: £500,000). Unrelisved tax losses have no expiry date.

Share capital and reserves

Group & Group &
Company Company
Group and Company 2021 2020
£ £
Ordinary share capital
Issued and fully paid
3 (2020: 1) ordinary shares of £1 sach 3 1

The company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no tights to fixed income.

On 29 Janyary 2021 OCM Luxembourg Pegasus Holdings S.A.R.L., capitalised £294,857,000 in loans to
new share capital. Two new ordinary shares of £1 were issued and a share premium arose of £294,856,998.

The group's and company's reserves comprise:
Share premium: Share premium represents amounts subscribed for share capitalin excess of nominal value.

Capital contribution. The capital contribution reserve represents capital contributions received from a parent
undertaking.

Retained eamings: Retained eamings comprise all other net gains and losses and transactions with owners
(e.g., dividends) not recognised eisewhere.

49



LIFESTORY GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Related party transactions
Transactions between the company and its subsidiaries have been eliminated on consolidation and are not

disclosed in this note. Transactions with other related parties are noted below:

The company purchased goods from the Naked Grape Wine Limited of which C. Compton-Goddard is a
director. The transactions to the value of £nil (2020: £3,000) were undertaken in the year and £nil batance
was oulstanding at year end (2020: Enil).

The group made purchases in the year of 1,250,000 (2020: £16,009,000) from Hackwood Homes Limited.
The group also advanced loan finance of £nif {2020: £3,615,000) to Hackwood Homes Limited. Al the year-
end, a balance of £69,000 {2020: £1,277,000) was owed from Hackwood Homes Limited which is included
in amounts due from related parties.

The company made purchasas in the year of £nil (2020: £3,285) from Hackwood Homes Limited. The
company also advanced loan finance of £nil (2020: £3,615,000) to Hackwood Homes Limited. At the year-
end, 2 balance of £8,512,000 (2020: £8,548,000) was owed from Hackwood Homes Limited which is included
in amounts due from related parties. In the previous year this balance was included in amounts due from
subsidiary undertakings as Hackwood was praviously a subsidiary.

Anthology Group Limited group companies have a director in common with Mark Dickinson; and are under
the same control as Lifestory Group. The company recharged £2,687,350 (2020: was recharged £522,000)
for services 1o, and £134,031 for costs incurred on behalf of, London Real Estate Development Limited
(LRED)- A further £224,515 was recharged to the group by LRED for costs incurred on the group’s behalf,
At the year-end £2,076,258 (2020: owed £522,000) was due from LRED. The company was recharged Enil
{2020: £130,000) for services by Anthclogy Group Limited and £130,000 {2020: £130,000} was outstanding
at the year-end. The company recharged £168,026 (2020: £nil) for costs incurred on behalf of Anthology
Deptford Foundry Limited and £158,026 (2020: £nil) was outstanding al the year-end. The company
recharged £198,195 (2020: £nil) for costs incurred on behalf of Anthology Haie Works Limited and £198,195
(2020: Enil) was outstanding at the year-end. The company recharged £71,451 (2020: £nil) for costs incurred
on behalf of Anthology Hoxton Press Limited and £71,451 (2020: £nil) was outstanding at the year-end. The
company racharged £38,224 (2020: £nil) for costs incurred on behalf of Anthology Stratford Mill Limited and
£38,224 (2020: £nil) was outstanding at the year-end. The company recharged £92,723 (2020: £nil) for costs
incurred on behalf of Antholegy Wembley Parade Limited and £92,723 (2020: £nil) was outstanding at the

year-end.

On 9 March 2021 the Group entered into a £35,000,000 loan agreement with sister company, Anthalogy
Group Limited, on 25 June 2021 this facility was increased lo £42,000,000. During the year Anthology Group
Limited provided loan finance of £18,000,000 (2020: £nil) to the company and group during the year, of which
£1,000,000 (2020: Enil) was repaid. At the year-end £17,198,000 (2020: £nil) of the loan finance was
outstanding. During the year interest was charged at a fixed rate of 5,00% being £198,000 (2020: £nil). The
loan is unsecured, repayable an 9 March 2024,

OCM Luxembourg Pegasus Holdings S.4.r.1, the immediate parent undertaking, provided a loan finance of
£63,700,000 {2020: £47,200,000) to the company and group during the year. During the year OCM
Luxembourg Pegasus Holdings 5.4.r.. acquired 2 ordinary shares for consideration of £294,857 000 which
was seliled via the intercompany account. At the year-end £28,833,000 (2020: £252,402,000) of the loan
finance was outstanding. During the year interest was charged on this loan finance of £7,608,000 (2020;

£12,860,000).

Key management personnel
Key management personnel are considered to be solely the directors. Their remuneration is disclosed in note

8.
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Jo Cash absorbed by group operations

2021 2020

£'000 £'000

Loss for the year afier tax (90,913) (103.571)

Adjustments far:

Taxation {credited) (386) (B92)

Finance costs 35,896 47,535

Amortisation of right of use assets 258 283

Degpreciation of property, ptant and equipment 201 630

jmpairment of inventories and investment property 21,657 32,555
Movements in working capital:

Increasel/(decrease) in inventories 45784 (8.503)

(Inrcrease) in trade and other receivables {8,577} (776)

Increasa/{decrease) in trade and other payables 8,667 (13,741)

Cash generated/{absorbed) by operations 19,587 (46,470)

3 Analysis of changes in net debt - group

1 July Cash Non-cash 30 June

2020 flows cthanges 2021

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cash at bank and in hand 9421 18,018 - 27,439

Borowings (660,743) (23,787} 282,814 {401,716)

Leases (2.026) 352 880 (794)

(653,348) (5,417) 283,654 (375,071}

Included within non-cash changes is an acquisition of shares by parent company, OCM Luxembourg Pegasus
Holdings S.A.R.L., of £294 857,000 that was seltled via intercompany account.

3z Immediate and ultimate controlling party

The immediate holding company is OCM Luxembourg Pegasus Holdings S.A.R.L, a company registared in
Luxembourg and the ultimate hakiing company and controlling parly is Brookfield Asset Management Inc., a
company incorporated in Canada.

Brookfield Asset Management Inc. is the parent of the largest group, of which Lifestory Group Limited is a
member, to prepare group financial statements. The group financial statements can be obtained from its
registered address: Suite 300, Brookfield Place, 181 Bay Street, Toronto, Canada M5J 2T3.
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Events after the reporting date

On 13 September 2021 the 126-home development in Portishead achieved planning far a change of use and
was sold to a housing association for £27,800,000.

On 16 September 2021 41 rented properties were transferred for a value of £15,000,000 to a newly formed
business outside of the Lifestory group but with a common ultimate parant company. At the same time a
framework agreement was completed to allow all future rented homes to be transferred to this same entity,
subject to certain criteria being met. The letting agency business operated by Lifastory will continue to provide
letting services for the purchaser,

On 14 October 2021 the group completed the acquisition on a sile in Lymington for £4,800,000,

On 15 Octeober 2021 the group completed a development loan far three sites at Bath, Wooburn Green, and
Cranleigh, with Cheyne Capital Limited with a facility totalling £40,000,000 with a repayment date of April
2024.

On 29 November 2021 the group completed the acguisition on a site in Lichfield for £2,900,000.

On 7 December 2021, the company increased the facility with sister company, Anthology Group Limited to
£62.000,000.

On B February 2022 the Midas group entered administration. Midas was a main contractor for one of our
completed sites however only rectification work remained outstanding, and management has assessed that
the impact to the group is insignificant, and the warks will be completed by Lifestory on a canstruction
management basis,
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